
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday 8 November 2022. 

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Employment 
Committee  

     
 

 

Wednesday, 16 November 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Adam Stokes, Councillor Annie Mason, 
Councillor Paul Wood and Vacancy (Alliance SK) 
 

Agenda 
 

 This meeting can be watched as a live stream, or at a later date, via the  
SKDC YouTube Channel 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 

 

2.   Disclosure of interests 
 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 11) 

4.   Updates from the previous meeting 
 

There were no Actions agreed at the previous meeting. 
 

 

5.   New Office Accommodation Update 
 

This report provides Employment Committee with an update on the current 
progress of the new office accommodation project taking place. 
 

(Pages 13 - 16) 

6.   SKDC Intranet 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an 
update on the Council’s intranet. 
 

(Pages 17 - 20) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://www.youtube.com/user/SouthKestevenDC


 

7.   Employee Rewards and Recognition Update 
 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an 
update on employee recognition.  
 

(Pages 21 - 24) 

8.   HR People Plan and Dashboard 
 

This report provides narrative to the HR metrics from the HR Dashboard 
covering quarter 1 and quarter 2 of the 2022/23 financial year. 
 

(Pages 25 - 47) 

9.   Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

Members to consider the Committee’s Work Programme for 2022-2023. 
 

(Page 49) 

10.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 
 

 



 
 

MINUTES 
Employment Committee 
 
Wednesday, 21 September 2022, 10.00 am 
 
Council Chamber – South Kesteven House, 
St. Peter’s Hill, Grantham.  NG31 6PZ 

 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 

 

Councillor Sarah Trotter (Chairman) 
Councillor Anna Kelly (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Annie Mason 
Councillor Paul Wood 
Councillor Ashley Baxter 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
 

 

Officers in attendance  
 
Karen Bradford (Chief Executive) 
Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive) 
Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 
Jane Jenkinson (Senior HR Officer) 
Mieke Alcock (HR Officer) 
Georgia Davis (HR Officer 
Sarah Downs (Democratic Officer) 

 

 

 
9. Apologies for absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Adam Stokes. 
 
Councillor Helen Crawford was a substitute. 

 
10. Disclosure of interests 

 
There were none. 

 
11. Minutes of the meeting held on: 

 
9 March 2022 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

28 March 2022 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 28 March 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record. 
 
15 June 2022 

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 June 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record. 

 
12. Updates from the previous meeting 

 
The HR Manager informed Members of the Committee that the action from the 
meeting of 15 June 2022 will be presented in the format requested at the meeting 
scheduled on 16 November 2022: 
 
‘In future information in respect of disability, religion, ethnicity and sexual orientation 
to be listed with numbers rather than shown in a pie chart’ 

 
13. Pay Review Update 

 
Councillor Mason, the Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities 
introduced the pay review update report, summarising that since the previous 
update, noted by the Employment Committee on 9 March 2022, a number of 
actions had been completed which included: 
 
• An Equality Impact Assessment on the scope of the Pay Review. 
 

• Setting up of a Pay Review Working Group to develop proposals. Separate 
sub- groups were also to be set up to look at each of the four areas of the Pay 
Review Scope. 

 

• Details of the pay review and its proposed scope had been communicated to 
the Trade Unions through the Joint Consultative and Negotiating Committee 
meetings which are led by Chief Executive. 

 
• An action plan had been developed to deliver the scope of the Pay Review.  

 
The Senior HR Officer gave a further update on the report and informed Members 
about the use of career grades to attract the best staff to the Council and the 
provision of development opportunities and progression to develop and retain 
talent.  Work was underway with the pay review sub-group to ensure a career grade 
procedure that enabled equity and consistency across the Council as well as a 
review of the lower range of pay grades based on the Real Living Wage rate, due to 
be announced on 22 September 2022. 
 
With effect from 1 April 2022, an increase of £1925 was offered for all National Joint 
Council pay points 1 and above. The Officer continued that the Council usually 

4



 
 

aligned pay deals to the national agreement and have modelled removing the 
lowest scale points in order to create more differentiation between grades in the 
bottom scales and analysis of similar roles has been undertaken to identify any 
inconsistencies between pay grades.  The job evaluation process was being 
updated however this would not have budgetary implications. 

 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 
• Although the pay deal had not yet been agreed, it was clearly going to be a 

significant cost. 
 

• Attracting good local talent was an issue due to a gap in the market. 
 
• The scheme to attract apprentices and graduates was to be encouraged.  

Referred to as a ‘grow your own’ method It was considered as a way of 
attracting loyal, long-serving staff and promoting a career in Local 
Government. 

 
• It was acknowledged that the addition of pay supplements in some sectors by 

neighbouring Local Authorities meant competition made recruiting more 
difficult. 

 
• How far along was the job evaluation process? 
 
• Was there regular consultation with trade unions during the updating of 

processes? 
 
• Did apprentices qualify for the Real Living Wage? 
 
• The review must include paternity leave when considering impact. 

 
The Senior HR Officer confirmed that any new roles will from now on go through the 
updated evaluation process. 
 
The HR Manager informed the Committee that meetings were held on a monthly 
basis with trade unions and they were in agreement nationally.  The lowest pay 
scale points were to be removed or increased to adhere to legal requirements and 
the Real Living Wage.  The Officer explained that the national minimum wage for 
apprentices was being reviewed.  The Council was looking to offer a scheme where 
apprentices can work within a number of different departments to gain more 
experience. 

 
The Deputy Chief Executive informed Members that the modelling was not yet 
complete on this scheme as cost of living negotiations were still taking place so the 
exact cost could not be stated at this stage.  The review was focused on growing 
and retaining talent through providing opportunities and development. 
 
 

5



 
 

AGREED: 
 
That the Employment Committee: 
 
a) Noted the update of the Pay Review based on the agreed scope of the 

review. 
 

14. Corporate Values Update 
 

Councillor Mason, the Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities 
introduced the corporate values update report.  The Committee was informed that a 
third People Panel meeting had taken place on 2 August 2022 which involved 25 
Officers from teams across the Council, where a refresh of the Council’s corporate 
values was launched.  The feedback indicated that colleagues did not always relate 
to the values that should be a fundamental part of the organisation’s identity so an 
organisation-wide employee-led approach has been undertaken. 
 
The HR Manager summarised that the current corporate values are being reviewed.  
As well as having formed a People’s Panel, they looked at other organisations and 
their values, for example, the NHS, and Facebook. 

 
The Officer confirmed that feedback received will be used to start identifying what 
the new corporate values could be with the aim of making a difference.  Member 
involvement in the process was to be welcomed as a key part of the Council with 
contact and ideas on our community needs.  A ‘values workshop’ with the 
Employment Committee could be part of the process. 
 
The Chairman agreed that the Councillors wanted to make a difference and 
welcomed the chance to be involved. 
 
Members raised the following points during discussion: 

 

• Were corporate values to fit in with the corporate plan? 
 

• The focus needed to be on the people in their jobs, values should be 
employee-led and be meaningful to them. 

 

• How was networking a value? 
 

• Were all employees aware of the process? 
 

• How do the residents engage with the process? 
 

• Values and culture were connected and affected by the work-from-home 
behaviours. 

 

• All Members should be invited to be involved in the workshops. 
 

6



 
 

The HR Manager confirmed that the corporate values were not completely 
resonating with employees yet and they needed to be built into our processes as 
well as ensuring they were relevant.  This would support the Council to increase the 
retention of staff.  Engaging with and involving residents was to be the next stage in 
the process. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive informed Members that it was the behaviours that 
affect the corporate values and in turn, the corporate plan.  Networking was a 
behaviour to support the value of working together and supporting each other. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Employment Committee:  
 
a).  Noted the update on South Kesteven’s corporate values.  
 
b).  Advised how the committee and councillors would like to be involved in   

the development of the new corporate values by agreeing that all 
Members will be included in the workshops.  

 
15. Induction Update 

 
Councillor Mason, the Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities 
introduced the induction update and asked that the Committee noted the report. 
 
The HR Manager summarised that the induction process was an opportunity for 
South Kesteven District Council to welcome new recruits, help them settle in and 
ensure they had the knowledge and support they needed to perform in their role.  
Feedback from recent starters and the People Panel indicated there was an 
opportunity to improve the process for our new starters. The feedback particularly 
highlighted that new recruits did not feel they necessarily got to know about the 
wider Council and what other teams do.  New initiatives included a meeting at 3 
months with a member of HR to support and answer any questions and concerns. 
 
During discussion, Members raised the following points: 

 

• The new initiatives were welcomed 
 

• Was there IT support around the e-learning package? 
 

• What was involved in the Team SK quiz? 
 

• With homeworking being a large part of the culture, how were new starters 
made to feel like part of the Team? 

 

• Were new starters informed about Trade Unions? 
 

7



 
 

• In the past, new starters had been shown the Council Chamber and how 
Democracy informs the running of the organisation. 

 

• Members were inspired to see the real effort to get employees together and 
connected 

 

• The HR Manager was congratulated on their leadership 
 

The Deputy Chief Executive informed the Committee that the induction process had 
evolved over time.  The recent induction meeting had taken place in the Council 
Chamber and included a presentation by the Assistant Director of Governance.  
The Team SK quiz was about the district of South Kesteven. 
 
The HR Manager added that the new e-learning module was a user-friendly system 
and guidance around working from home was included in the induction process.  
Key members of staff and trade union representatives were introduced as well as 
their location. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Employment Committee: 
 
a).  noted the update on South Kesteven’s induction process.  
 

16. Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions Discretions Procedure 
 

Councillor Mason, the Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities 
introduced the report on the Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions Discretions 
Procedure.  The Committee was informed that there is a requirement on employers 
to formulate, publish and keep under review a policy statement in relation to the 
exercise of a number of discretions under the Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS). 
 
The Senior HR Officer explained that the changes to the Pensions Policy Discretion 
Procedure are minor changes to wording to reflect statutory requirements and also 
to reflect organisational structure and job title changes.  All discretions will continue 
to be dealt with in accordance with the Principles of the Pensions Policy Statement. 

 
Employment Committee were asked to delegate approval of future minor changes 
to the Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions Policy Discretions Procedure to the 
Deputy Chief Executive in consultation with the Cabinet Member for People and 
Safer Communities. 
 
Members raised the following points during discussion: 
 

• Were there any financial implications? 
 

8



 
 

• Were the minor legislative changes to be delegated to the Deputy Chief 
Executive to ensure a quicker and more efficient process? 

 
It was confirmed that there were no financial implications due to the minor changes 
to policy and The Deputy Chief Executive confirmed that if the Employment 
Committee approved the recommendation, they would work in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities.   

 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Committee: 
 
a) Approved the changes to the Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions 

Policy Discretion Procedure.  
 
b) Delegated to the Deputy Chief Executive for minor legislative changes to 

the Pensions Policy Statement and Pensions Policy Procedure.  
 
A Member requested that the Chairman consider deferring some of the agenda 
items to the next Committee on 16 November 2022 due to time constraints. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 
 
That the Employment Committee defer Agenda items: 
 
9. SKDC Intranet 
11. Employee Handbook 
12. Employee Rewards and Recognition were deferred to the 16   November 

Employment Committee meeting 
 

17. Draft Operational Driving Policy 
 

The Council has a legal duty under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 to 
ensure, as far as reasonably practicable, the health and safety of all employees 
while at work. Employers and employees also have a duty to ensure that others are 
not put at risk by work related driving activities.   
 
The Policy also supports risk management, ensuring that employees are aware of 
their responsibilities and the relevant procedures that must be adhered to. The use 
of CCTV and GPS tracking devices assists in providing evidence should a vehicle 
be involved in any accident, incident, or insurance claim and enables the Council to 
fulfil its duties to minimise the health and safety risks associated with occupational 
driving and have a positive impact on behaviours and support the timely and 
accurate investigation of any incidents. 

 
Members welcomed the report. 
 
It was proposed, seconded, and AGREED: 

9



 
 

 
That the Committee:  
 
a) Approved the adoption of the South Kesteven District Council 

Operational Driving Policy  
 
b) Delegated authority to the Deputy Chief Executive, in consultation with 

the Cabinet Member for People and Safer Communities, to make minor 
amendments to the Policy which may become necessary from time to 
time to ensure its continued accuracy, but do not affect its direction or 
intent.  

 
Exclusion of Press and Public 
 
Members considered excluding the press and public, following a vote it was 
AGREED unanimously. 
 
DECISION: 
 
That the press and public be excluded during discussion of the following 
agenda item because of the likelihood that information is exempt under 
paragraph 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) 
would be disclosed to them. 
 
(The Deputy Chief Executive, HR Manager and HR Officers left the Council 
Chamber and the Chief Executive joined the meeting at this point)  
 

18. Proposed Director Targets for 2022 - 2023 
 

Restricted minute. 
 

19. Work Programme 2022 - 2023 
 

It was clarified that the deferred items from today’s meeting would be added to the 
next scheduled Employment Committee meeting on 16 November 2022 on the 
Work Programme. 
 
The Committee noted the contents of the Work Programme 2022-2023. 
 
The Vice-Chairman asked for clarification on whether the Employee handbook was 
available online and the HR Manager confirmed that it was. 

 
 

20. Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special circumstances, 
decides is urgent 

 
There was no other business. 

 

10



 
 

21. Close of meeting 
 

The Chairman closed the meeting at 11:40. 
 
 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

16 November 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Kelham Cooke, 
Leader of the Council 
 
 

 

 

New Office Accommodation Update 

 
Report Author 

Sam Fitt, Corporate Project Lead 

  Sam.fitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

This report provides Employment Committee with an update on the current progress of 

the new office accommodation project taking place. 

 

Recommendations 

 

1. That the Employment Committee notes the progress on the new office 
accommodation.  

 

Decision Information 

Is this a Key Decision? No 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High Performing Council 

13

Agenda Item 5

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


Which wards are impacted? All  

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal 

and governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, 

safeguarding, staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the 

impact on the Council’s declaration of a climate change emergency, the following 

implications have been identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. The budget 

for the relocation and fitting out of new office accommodation has been approved 

by Full Council and expenditure is being managed accordingly. 

Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer 

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no legal or governance implications regarding this report. Procurement 

procedures have been followed using frameworks, and any contracts that are 

signed will be reviewed and checked with Lincolnshire Legal Services. 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3 South Kesteven District Council signed up to the National Local Authority Mental 

Health Challenge as a public commitment to supporting residents’ wellbeing and 

wellness.  A significant number of employees have felt more anxious and isolated 

than ever due to lockdown. Many have admitted to struggling with their mental 

health more than usual in recent months.  A return to the daily commute lacks 

appeal to those who have had the flexibility of home working; a balance between 

the two is the logical solution, with a mix of office and homeworking favoured by 

the vast number of employees.  

 

1.4 It is widely reported that communities have been massively affected by the drop in 

footfall of office workers’ spending.  Whilst it is acknowledged that some people do 

not want to return to their traditional commutes, placing office spaces near local 

high streets where people are living as well as working, helps to revitalise 

localities, as this places office workers amongst other businesses that rely on their 

trade.  

 

1.5 Whilst there are no direct safeguarding implications associated with the content of 

this report, the provision of more modern accommodation is likely to assist 

members of the team with mobility issues by reducing the number of floors and 

doorways in the office space.   Similarly, any design of the Council’s Customer 

14



Service Centre will provide opportunity to ensure there are no barriers to members 

of the public in terms of service provision. 

   

An Equality Impact Assessment was completed as part of the relocation to the 

space previously.  

 

Climate Change 

 

1.6 As an older building, the St Peter’s Hill offices provide limited scope for improved 

energy efficiency without considerable retrofitting investment.  The newer cinema 

complex is built to modern standards with more efficient heating and ventilation 

and represents a significant improvement on the existing St Peter’s Hill office 

accommodation and will contribute positively to the Council’s Climate Change and 

Carbon Reduction Plans.   

 

1.7 Supporting a shift to flexible working generally sees a reduction in home-to-work 

mileage that contributes to a reduced carbon footprint. 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1 Approval was given at the Annual Full Council meeting held on 26 May 2022 to 

vacate its existing offices at St Peter’s Hill, Grantham, and relocate to the empty 

office unit above the Savoy Cinema on St Catherine’s Road. 

 

2.4 A budget allocation of up to £500k funded from the Invest to Save Reserve was 

approved by Council to be used for the relocation and works to be carried out for 

the upstairs area. 

 

2.5 The new design reflects the business need of the Council, compared to the 

existing layout, for example the removal of some internal walls and their 

reinstatement and the provision of some storage areas for office equipment.   

There has also been a need to undertake a full survey and obtain professional 

advice in terms of the air-handling within the space.  

   

2.6 Design works and specification of the fitting out of the space has been moving 

forward, including consultation with all relevant stakeholders and the People’s 

Panel. The design and floor layout for the upper floor previously agreed is starting 

to take shape, and works have now begun on the space. The works have been led 

by the Lindum Construction Group via the Scape Framework to adhere to the 

Councils financial and procurement regulations and was approved by Cabinet.  

 

2.7 The current plan shows that the works Lindum Construction Group need to carry 

out will be completed prior to Christmas, and then members of the facilities and IT 

team will begin transferring furniture and IT equipment. This will allow staff to work 

from the new office in January 2023.  

 

15



2.7 It was also approved at Cabinet that the temporary relocation of the Customer 

Services provision to the Guildhall Arts Centre can take place, so that there is no 

disruption to our customers, whilst the move is underway. Plans for this are 

underway and the move will take place towards the end of November 2022.  

 

2.8 In parallel with the works being completed on the new Council offices, design work 

and specifications are being discussed for the two lower units located on St 

Catherine’s Road, with positive discussions with other public sector bodies 

ongoing regarding its future operational use as a community service hub. This 

work is not part of the approved £500k budget for the new Council offices on St 

Catherine’s Road. It is intended that a further report will be brought to the relevant 

meeting, in relation to this space at the appropriate time. 

 

3. Key Considerations 
 

3.1 Not applicable as report is just an update for noting.  

 

4. Other Options Considered 
 

4.1 Not applicable as report is just an update for noting. 

 

5. Reasons for the Recommendations 
 

5.1 Not applicable as report is just an update for noting. 

 

6. Consultation 

 
6.1 Viewings of the first-floor space and St Peter’s Hill offices have been undertaken 

by Members and employees (from across the Council). The response to viewings 

has been extremely positive. Trade Unions have also been regularly consulted as 

part of a standing item during monthly meetings.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

16



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

16 November 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

SKDC Intranet 
 

Report Author 

Gary Andrew (IT Manager) 

   Gary.andrew@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

the Council’s intranet. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update on South Kesteven’s intranet site.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17

Agenda Item 6

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 Any financial implications associated with replacing the intranet will need to be 

considered as part of the business case. 

Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2  The intranet must continue to adhere to legal requirements such as the Data 

Protection Act. 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.3  Part of the future plans is to create a more accessible platform and content.  

 

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.4  Wellbeing support is currently provided on the intranet and this will continue to 

provide a hub of resources, advice and signposts for further support.   

 

Staffing 

 

1.5  The Intranet is a staff resource and there will therefore be lots of opportunities for 

staff to be involved in agreeing what they would like from their Intranet.  

  

18



 Resource for the upgrade will be from the IT Team and potentially project 

management support. Relevant teams will also be involved in specific content 

relating to their areas.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Employment Committee requested an update on the Council’s intranet 

including what changes took place in the review earlier this year and what the 

next steps are.  

 

2.2 Whilst a review of the intranet has taken place and a number of changes and 

updates were made, the platform currently being used very much limits the 

potential of a staff intranet.  

 

Intranet Review 

 

2.3  The intranet was reviewed in October 2021 with a purpose of updating content, 

rebranding the site and updating the directory.  

 

2.4  All departments with content on the intranet were asked to review it and remove or 

replace information where required. This included updates to the customer 

services pages including the contacts, the home page links and the health and 

safety advice. More recent updates have included adding the desk booking 

guidance and app to support the new ways of working.  

 

2.5  All the ‘Monty’ branding was removed (previous name for the intranet) and the site 

was rebranded with the corporate logos and colour scheme. 

 

2.6  The employee directory was linked to the IT user database to bring it up to date.  

 

Next steps 

 

2.7 There are several limitations of the current intranet platform which make it difficult 

to do a more substantial and significant update. The current intranet is old and 

does not have high usage. Plans are being put in place to refresh the council’s 

website and initial scoping is to take place to understand cost implications of also 

doing this for the intranet. 

 

2.8  A project team has been established and work has started on the Council’s new 

website. 

 

2.8  For the Intranet, user needs and possible solutions will be explored with the 

People Panel including potential options for a more interactive intranet and refresh 

of the design.  

 

 

19



3. Consultation 
 

3.1 The People Panel will be involved in future design options as well as wider staff 

consultation to ensure any new designs are useful and focused on what 

colleagues need from their intranet.  

 

 

 

  

 

 

20



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

16 November 2022 
 
Report of Councillor Annie Mason, 
Cabinet Member for People & Safer 
Communities 
 
 

 

 

Recognition Update 
 

Report Author 

Fran Beckitt (HR Manager) 

   fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

 

Purpose of Report 

 

The purpose of this report is to provide the Employment Committee with an update on 

employee recognition.  

 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Employment Committee: 

 

1. Notes the update on South Kesteven’s recognition strategy.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No  

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All wards 

 

1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 In consideration of the financial climate the Council is currently operating in, the 

recognition strategy has focused on the importance of recognising our people 

whilst also incurring minimal additional financial pressures.  

 

1.2 The changes to long service awards were put in place following the last 

employment committee and this includes an approximate cost of £3900 per year 

over the next 5 years. This is a slight increase on the amounts spent under the 

previous process for recognising long service when employee’s leave the Council. 

Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.3  Not applicable.  

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.4  Our recognition strategy continues to take account of diversity and inclusion to 

ensure no negative implications.  

 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.5  Building a culture of recognition is important to employee’s mental health and 

emotional wellbeing.  The recognition strategy aligns with the internal wellbeing 

strategy.  

22



 

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Employment Committee requested an annual report to update on the 

employee recognition in place and any new initiatives.  

 

2.2  At South Kesteven, we want to ensure our people feel valued, inspired and proud 

of their contributions. We want to create a great company culture by focusing on 

positively rewarding the right behaviours and celebrate the positive things 

happening more.  

 

New Recognition Strategy 

 

2.3  South Kesteven District Council’s recognition strategy has been reviewed with 

feedback sought from the People Panel and colleagues.  

 

2.4  As a result, new initiatives have been introduced as outlined in the table below: 

 

#TeamSK Thank You Peer to peer nominations to say ‘thank you’ to a 
colleague and give a reason why. This was introduced 
in August and the first month attracted more than 50 
nominations, followed by 47 in September. A draw was 
made of all the nominees and the winners received an 
additional day’s annual leave.  

#TeamSK Thank You 
cards 

Designed and ordered for senior management and 
Members to use to give personal recognition to 
colleagues.  

Revised long service 
awards 

These were previously awarded when colleagues 
leave SKDC. The new process means colleagues are 
rewarded when the anniversary takes place making 
long service recognition more meaningful and timely. 
Amounts given were also reviewed and benchmarked. 

Manager discretionary 
recognition 

Giving managers the autonomy to say thank you to 
individuals within their teams for a great job or going 
the extra mile.  

Employee awards 
event 

We know that there are many, many examples where 
colleagues across SKDC have made outstanding 
contributions and in December 2022, we’ll hold an 
awards event to celebrate these.  

 

2.5  Recognition and benefits that continues include: 

 

+5 days annual leave 
for 5 years service 

Continuation of this benefit.  

Cycle to work Government initiative that allows employees to get a 
brand new bike and safety equipment, all tax free.  

23



Wellbeing support ‘My Healthy Advantage Plus’ provides enhanced 
wellbeing tools and features that are designed to 
improve physical and mental health.  
We also have the EAP and an extensive internal 
wellbeing plan.  

Car leasing scheme Lease a car through pay and the package includes all 
tax, insurance, servicing and AA cover.  

Eye testing For employees regularly using display screen 
equipment as part of their work, they are entitled to a 
free test every two years and a possible contribution 
towards the cost of glasses.  

Network Benefits Employee benefits scheme which is free to everyone 
who works for SKDC and includes discounts on lots of 
brands.  

 

 

 

6. Consultation 
 

6.1 The People Panel continue to be involved in the recognition strategy, as do our 

Union representatives, as we continue to explore recognition that is meaningful to 

our people.  

  

 

 

 

  

 

 

24



 
 

       

Employment 
Committee 
 
 

Date 16 November 2022 
 
Report of: Councillor Annie Mason 
 
Cabinet Member for People and Safer 
Communities 

 

 

HR Dashboard Update 
 

Report Author 

Fran Beckitt, HR Manager 

  Fran.beckitt@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

This report provides narrative to the HR metrics from the HR Dashboard covering quarter 

1 and quarter 2 of the 2022/23 financial year. 

 

Recommendations 

 

That the Committee: 

1. Notes the information provided in the dashboard for the first 6 months of 
the 2022/23 financial year. 

 

 

 

Decision Information 

Does the report contain any 
exempt or confidential 
information not for publication? 

No 

 

What are the relevant corporate 
priorities?  

High performing Council 

Which wards are impacted? All  

 

25

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


1.  Implications 
 

Taking into consideration implications relating to finance and procurement, legal and 

governance, risk and mitigation, health and safety, diversity and inclusion, safeguarding, 

staffing, community safety, mental health and wellbeing and the impact on the Council’s 

declaration of a climate change emergency, the following implications have been 

identified: 

 

Finance and Procurement  

 

1.1 The staffing budget is the most significant annual cost the Council incurs so it is of 

importance that the Council actively reviews and understands the composition, 

operation, development and performance of its workforce to ensure it remains 

motivated, focussed and skilled in order to support the delivery of the Council’s 

Corporate ambitions.  

Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

 

Legal and Governance 

 

1.2 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.  

 

Risk and Mitigation 

 

1.3 Not applicable 

 

Health and Safety 

 

1.4 Not applicable 

 

Diversity and Inclusion 

 

1.5 Diversity and inclusion statistics are outlined in the dashboard stats (appendix 

one), slide 14.  

 

Safeguarding 

 

1.6 Not applicable 

 

Human Resources 

 

1.7 This report, in its entirety, relates to human resources and covers HR metrics and 

data that underpin our people strategy.  

 

Community Safety  

 

1.8 Not applicable.  

26



 

Mental Health and Emotional Wellbeing 

 

1.9 Wellbeing is a key part of the People Strategy and data included in the dashboard 

relates to this topic. Please see section 2.5 below on wellbeing and absence, and 

slide 9-13 of the HR Dashboard (appendix one).  

 

Climate Change 

 

1.10 Not applicable.  

 

2. Background to the Report 
 

2.1  The Employment Committee requested that a comprehensive HR dashboard be 

provided every six months to Committee. The dashboard for the period April to 

September 2022 is attached to this report in Appendix One.  

 

2.2  The dashboard covers the following themes and narrative for each is outlined 

below: 

• Establishment 

• Starters and leavers 

• Absence 

• Equality and diversity 

• Employee relations case data 

• Learning and development 

 

2.3  Establishment 

• Headcount reduced slightly through the first half of this year from 558 

to 534. This is in line with some restructuring activity.  

• Nearly 70% of our workforce are aged over 40, with the largest 

numbers in the age range of 50-59 (32%).  

• Nearly half (48%) of our workforce have been working for SKDC less 

than 5 years.  

 

2.4  New starters and leavers 

• During the first half of the year (22/23), we have had 40 new starters 

and 64 leavers.  

• After high attrition levels in quarter 4 and quarter 1 (42 and 40 

leavers respectively), which was impacted by a large investigation, 

the number of leavers significantly fell in quarter 2 (24).  

• HR now invite all leavers to an exit interview. The outputs of these 

so far have included: 

- 82% of leavers said they would work for SKDC again in 

the future 

- 82% said they would recommend working here 

 

27



 

2.5  Absence and wellbeing 

• Average 6.65 days lost per FTE for Q1 and Q2, with a total of 958 days 

lost to short term sick and 2390 to long term. 

• The top reason for long term absence is due to mental health, and for 

short term it’s Covid and stomach related illness.  

• SKDC has increased the support for those off sick with mental health 

related illness including partnering with the ‘Access to work’ programme 

which is a DWP funded scheme providing trained professionals to 

support our colleagues.  

• 98% of return-to-work meetings were completed in quarter 2 following 

absences and 97.3% in quarter 1.  

 

2.6  Equality and diversity 

• Internal diversity stats are limited by the data held with large numbers 

having not yet recorded their answer to questions on disability, sexual 

orientation, ethnicity and religion.   

• Graphs on slide 15 of Appendix A provide the data we do have on 

disability, sexual orientation, ethnicity and religion.  

 

2.7  Employee relations case data 

• 8 disciplinary cases have been opened between April-September 2022 

and there have been no grievances raised. 

 

2.8   Learning and development 

• We’ve had 305 places that employees have filled on training courses 

(with more offered). This includes 40 different learning events by both 

external providers and internal sessions.  

• The number of employees on apprenticeships has increased to 14 with 

more opportunities being advertised in quarter 3.  

• The Learning Management System has been launched this year with all 

colleagues provided with access to the online learning.  

 

 

 

3. Consultation 
 

3.1 The dashboard metrics are also shared and discussed with our Union 

Representatives.  

 

 

4. Appendices 
 

4.1 Appendix one – HR Dashboard 

 

 

28



HR Data 
Employment Committee29



Summary of Data for Q1 & Q2 22/23

Establishment (as of 30 September) Absence

Performance Management New Starters & Leavers

FT PT

270 264

534

432 102
6.65

S/T

2390.1

Number of 
Disciplinaries

Number of 
Grievances

8 0 40 64

958.8

L/T

30



ESTABLISHMENT DATA31



534 496.60

Headcount
(End Q2)

Full Time 
Equivalent
Q1 & Q2

558 510.95

Headcount
(end of 21/22)

Full Time 
Equivalent

(End of 21/22)

12
Q1/Q2

Agency

32



432 102

Permanent Fixed Term

33



NEW STARTERS & LEAVERS
DATA

34



40

New Starters
Q1/Q2

64

Leavers
Q1/Q2

12.2%

Labour Turnover 
Q1 & Q2

35



82% said they 

would recommend 
working here. 

82% of leavers said 

they would work for 
SKDC again in future

How would you rate your level of 
satisfaction with your 
employment here? (1 very 
dissatisfied, 10 very satisfied.

Reasons for leaving

36



ABSENCE DATA37



958.8 2390.1

Q1 & Q2 total short 
term sickness

Q1 & Q2 total long 
term sickness

6.65

Q1 & Q2 Average 
Sickness per FTE

Average sickness per 
FTE for Lincolnshire 

Councils – 4.4

38



39



97.3% 98.03%

Return to work meetings

40



Number of visits to Employee 
Assistance Programme Q1/Q2:

42 Calls  

Number of visits to Mental 
Health First Aiders for 

Q1/Q2: 

60

41



EQUALITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION
DATA

42



43



EMPLOYEE RELATIONS CASE DATA

44



Disciplinaries

Grievances

0
4

Disciplinaries

Q2

4
Disciplinaries

Dismissal

1

Q1

Final Written Warning

2
Resignation

1

2
In progress

1
No Action

Resignation

1

45



LEARNING & DEVELOPMENT
DATA

46



Learning and Development
Q1 & Q2

Apprenticeships
Q1 & Q2

14

6

Q1 & Q2 Q1 & Q2

3

305
training 

places for 
employees

£44,122.05  
across all 
budgets 

40
Learning 
Events

Leadership Corporate Training Service Specific

First Time Management Training

Customer Experience Data Protection HR

Procurement

47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Employment Committee Work Programme 2022 – 2023 
 

Chairman: Councillor Sarah Trotter 
Vice-Chairman: Councillor Anna Kelly 
 

Subject Purpose Outcome sought 

 

18 January 2023 

Pay Policy Statement  Annual report to Employment Committee, to form part of 
the Budget setting process. 

To consider and recommend to full Council for 
approval. 

Employee Handbook Annual review of the Employee Handbook, to ensure in 
line with current legislation and changes 

Update to Employment Committee annually 
 

Workforce Equality and 
Gender Pay Gap Report 

Update to Employment Committee Annually. For consideration by the Employment 
Committee. 

The Work of the People Panel 
and staff survey 

An update on the work of the People Panel and findings 
of the staff survey. 

For the Employment Committee to note. 

 

8 March 2023 

Chief Executive Appraisal Annual Appraisal 
 

The Committee to note the Chief Executives 
Annual Appraisal. 

 

Items to be allocated 
None  

 

49

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 21 September 2022
	5 New Office Accommodation Update
	6 SKDC Intranet
	7 Employee Rewards and Recognition Update
	8 HR People Plan and Dashboard
	Appendix 1 - HR Dashboard

	9 Work Programme 2022 - 2023

